
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GOED CONFERENCE ROOM, 711 E WELLS AVE, PIERRE, SD 

   WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 11, 2023, 10:00 A.M., CT  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. Regular Session Agenda  
 
B. Minutes 

 
C. Conflicts of Interest 

 
D. Executive Session Agenda 

 
E. South Dakota Division of Banking 

 
F. Monthly Status Report 

 
G. Watch List 
 
H. North Bend Wind Project, LLC 

 
I. Sawyer W Wollman 

 
J. Bills 



     

 

REDI ABOARD OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GOED CONFERENCE ROOM, 711 E WELLS AVE, PIERRE, SD 

   WEDNEDAY, JANUARY 11, 2023, 10:00 A.M., CT  
 

Motion Sheet 
 

(STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS) 
 

Agenda 
Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Minutes 
Motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held December 14, 2022 as presented 
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Conflicts of Interest Disclosures  
 
Public Comments 
 
Commissioners Comments 
 
Executive Session 
Motion to enter into executive session to discuss contract matters and commercial and 
financial information relating to loan and other assistance to applicants. 
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Chairman: Declare board out of executive session. [           a.m.].  Chairman: The BED 
entered into executive session to discuss contract matters and commercial and 
financial information relating to loan and other assistance to applicants. No action was 
taken. 
 
Motion to approve the chairman’s report from executive session.   
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Reviews 
South Dakota Division of Banking - Report from Examination 
Motion to accept the exam as presented. 
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Old Business 
North Bend Wind Project, LLC 
Motion to approve extending the construction start date to June 25, 2023. 
 
Motion made by ____________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 

Please note times: 
 
Call To Order: ________ 
 
Executive Session_________ 
 
Regular Session________ 
 
Adjournment_________ 

Board 
Members: 
 
Jeff Erickson 
 
Matt Judson 
 
Sharon 
Casey 
 
Mike Luken 
 
Ted Hustead 
 
Don 
Kettering 
 
Tom Jones 
 
Reed Kessler 
 
Joy Nelson 
 
Eric Yunag 
 
Pat Burchill 
 
Kevin 
Tetzlaff 
 
David Emery 
 
Non-Voting 
 
Senator 
Reynold 
Nesiba 
 
Senator 
Casey 
Crabtree 
 
Representative 
Jennifer Keintz 
 
Representative 
Kent Peterson 



     

 

Sawyer W Wollman 
Motion to approve a commitment extension to October 12, 2023. 
 
Motion made by ____________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Bill 
Motion to approve the bill payable to Department of Legislative Audit in the amount of 
$19,140.30 and Heartland Energy in the amount of $7,501.90. 
 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion made by______________ and seconded by ___________________. 



A 
 
 



BOARD OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GOED CONFERENCE ROOM, 711 E WELLS AVE, PIERRE, SD 

   WEDNEDAY, JANUARY 11, 2023, 10:00 A.M., CT  
 

The public may participate by the following: 
Call In Number: (669) 900-9128        Meeting ID: 96677988449    Participant Id: #       Passcode: 421401 

https://state-sd.zoom.us/j/96677988449?pwd=S1I2bW5wRkd6OWJmVjUza0N2K1pDQT09 
www.zoom.com     Meeting ID: 96677988449    Passcode: 421401 

 
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

 
10:00 A.M. Call to Order, Chairman Jeff Erickson 

 
10:05 A.M. Agenda 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion to approve the agenda as provided or 
amended. 

 
 Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion to approve the minutes of December 
14, 2022 as presented. 

 
Conflicts of Interest Disclosures 
 
Legal Counsel presentation on required conflict of interest disclosures  

 
Public Comments 

 
10:20 A.M. Commissioner’s Comments 

 
  10:25 A.M. Executive Session 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion to enter into executive session to consult 
with legal counsel concerning contractual matters, to discuss contractual 
matters, and to discuss commercial and financial information relating to loan 
and other assistance applicants. SDCL 1-16G-11, 1-25-2(3) and 19-19-502 

 
  10:55 A.M. Report from Executive Session 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Chairman’s report from Executive Session. 
 

Other Motions 
 South Dakota Division of Banking Exam 
 North Bend Wind Project, LLC 
 Sawyer W Wollman 

 
Bills 
 Department of Legislative Audit - $19,140.30 
 Heartland Energy - $7,501.90 
 
Adjournment 

 
Notice is further given to persons with disabilities that this meeting is being held in a physically 
accessible place. Please notify the above mentioned office within 48 hours of the public hearing if you 
have special needs for which this agency will make the necessary arrangements. 

https://state-sd.zoom.us/j/96677988449?pwd=S1I2bW5wRkd6OWJmVjUza0N2K1pDQT09
http://www.zoom.com/


B 
 
 



BOARD OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GOED CONFERENCE ROOM, 711 E WELLS AVE, PIERRE, SD 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2022, 10:00 A.M., CT 
 
 
Members Present  
Chairman Jeff Erickson, Matt Judson, Sharon Casey, Mike Luken, Ted Hustead, Don Kettering 
Tom Jones, Reed Kessler, Eric Yunag, Pat Burchill, Kevin Tetzlaff and David Emery 
 
Staff Present 
Deputy Commissioner Chris Schilken, Travis Dovre, Ashley Moore, Jack Valentine, Nadine 
Agneau, Nick Rabern, Joe Fiala and Nate Welch 
 
Other Staff Present 
Mike Bietz and Shawn Hofer – BankWest, Inc. 
 
Other’s Present 
Bob Mercer – Keloland 
 
Call to Order 
Chairman Erickson called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Agenda 
A motion was made by Matt Judson and seconded by Sharon Casey to approve the agenda as 
approved. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
Minutes 
A motion was made by Don Kettering and seconded by Eric Yunag to approve the minutes of 
the meeting held November 9, 2022, November 22, 2022 and December 5, 2022, as presented. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
Conflicts Disclosure 
Chairman Erickson opened the floor for board members to identify potential conflicts under 
SDCL Chapter 3-23. Jeff Erickson declared a potential conflict with Roto Mold, LLC as he is a 
shareholder and on the Board of Directors for American Bank and Trust and he would not 
partake in the discussion or vote on the project. Kevin Tetzlaff declared a potential conflict with 
RTI, LLC due to banking relations and he would not partake in the discussion or vote on the 
project. The Chairman opened up the floor for questions and discussion concerning the 
potential conflicts; there were none from the board members and no objection to proceeding 
with the agenda. 
 
Public Comments – none 
 
Executive Session 
A motion was made by Pat Burchill and seconded by David Emery to enter into Executive 
Session at 10:11 a.m. to discuss contract matters and commercial and financial information 
relating to loan and other assistance to applicants. SDCL 1-16G-11. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
 
 



Executive Session Report 
The Chairman declared the board out of Executive Session at 10:52 a.m. The Chairman 
reported that the Board of Economic Development entered into Executive Session to consult 
with legal counsel concerning contractual matters, discuss contract matters and commercial and 
financial information relating to loan and other assistance to applicants. No action was taken.  
 
A motion was made by Sharon Casey and seconded by Ted Hustead to approve the 
Chairman’s report from Executive Session.  
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
Reviews 
Grant Reviews 
Local Infrastructure Improvement Program (Belle Fourche Economic Development Corporation 
and Grant County Development Corporation), Reinvestment Payment Program (Brightmark Full 
Circle RNG, LLC, Brightmark Mill Valley RNG, LLC, Dairy Wise Builders-SD II, LLC, Intrinsic 
Materials, Corp., Millborn Seeds, Inc. and Moody Biogas, LLC) and South Dakota Jobs Program 
(Cole-TAC, LLC and Red’s All Natural, LLC) 
A motion was made by Don Kettering and seconded by Mike Luken to approve the grant 
reviews as recommended by staff and Grant Committee. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
Loan Review Summary 
RTI, LLC 
A motion was made by Eric Yunag and seconded by Pat Burchill to approve the loan review and 
recommendation as presented. 
Motion passed by a voice vote with Kevin Tetzlaff abstaining. 
 
Old Business 
Albany Farms 
A motion was made by Mike Luken and seconded by Ted Hustead to approve extending the 
loan commitment and other changes as presented and discussed. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
City of Lake Preston 
A motion was made by Kevin Tetzlaff and seconded by David Emery to approve an extension of 
the LIIP grant agreement for the City of Lake Preston to May 15, 2025. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
Clark County 
A motion was made by Pat Burchill and seconded by Ted Hustead to approve an extension of 
the LIIP grant agreement for Clark County to June 9, 2023. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 
 
New Business 
Brian Miller 
A motion was made by Sharon Casey and seconded by Tom Jones to approve a SD Works 
loan request from Brian Miller in the amount of $31,000. Secured by a shared 2nd lien position 
on the commercial real estate. 
 
The loan is approved according to the terms and conditions of the commitment letter; all 
documents may be executed on behalf of the Board by the Commissioner of the Governor’s 
Office of Economic Development or the Commissioner’s designee. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 



Roto Mold, LLC 
A motion was made by Don Kettering and seconded by Ted Hustead approve the waiver for a 
loan of $1,000,000 and a loan request from Roto Mold, LLC in the amount of $1,085,000. 
Secured by a shared 1st UCC, shared 1st CREM and the personal guaranty of principals with 
10% or more ownership and a corporate guaranty. 

The loan is approved according to the terms and conditions of the commitment letter; all 
documents may be executed on behalf of the Board by the Commissioner of the Governor’s 
Office of Economic Development or the Commissioner’s designee. 
Motion passed by a voice vote with Jeff Erickson abstaining. 

Local Infrastructure Improvement Program 
Mitchell Area Development Corporation 
A motion was made by David Emery and seconded by Pat Burchill to approve a Local 
Infrastructure Improvement grant award to Mitchell Area Development Corporation in the 
amount of $362,500, to be granted in accordance with the board’s Local Infrastructure 
Improvement Award Policy as recommended by staff and Grant Committee. 
Motion passed by a voice vote. 

Reinvestment Payment Program 
Manitou Equipment America 
A motion was made by Don Kettering and seconded by Mike Luken to approve the 
Reinvestment Payment Program grant application to Manitou Equipment America as 
recommended by staff. 

Based on the representations and project description contained in the application for 
reinvestment payment, including but not limited to the representations concerning jobs created 
or retained and wages and benefits to be paid, a new or expanded facility reinvestment payment 
of $1,085,630 but not to exceed 50% percent of State Sales/Use Tax paid on eligible project 
costs, is approved for Manitou Equipment America. The project as completed must be 
substantially similar to the project described in the application and must comply with the 
deadlines set out SDCL Ch. 1-16G and ARSD Ch. 68:02:07. The board has considered the 
factors set out in SDCL 1-16G-59 and ARSD 68:02:07:04 and the likelihood the project would 
not be located in South Dakota absent the reinvestment payment. Staff is authorized to issue a 
permit consistent with the application, this approval and the applicable provisions of SDCL Ch. 
1-16G and ARSD Ch. 68:02:07.

Adjourn 
A motion was made by Sharon Casey and seconded by Pat Burchill to adjourn the meeting at 
11:02 a.m. 

_________________________________ 
Matt Judson, Treasurer 



C 
 
 



1 

 

State Board Disclosure Laws 
Instructions and Forms 

SDCL 3-23-1 et seq. 
Effective July 1, 2017 

 
OVERVIEW 

This document outlines  requirements found in SDCL Chapter 3-23, including updates that take 
effect on July 1, 2017 (hereinafter “disclosure laws”).  The disclosure laws apply to current and 
certain former members of certain State boards, commissions and authorities (hereinafter 
“Boards” and “Board Members or Members”). The disclosure laws prohibit a current Board 
Member  absent proper disclosure and/or waiver, from having an interest in, or from deriving a 
direct benefit from certain contracts with the State or with certain political subdivisions of the 
State.  This document refers to contracts that are implicated under this law as “covered 
contracts”.  The disclosure laws also prohibit certain former Board Members, absent proper 
waiver, from deriving a direct benefit from covered contracts.  The foregoing prohibitions also 
apply to direct benefits derived by a spouse or other person living with the Board Member or 
commingling assets with the Board Member.  The disclosure laws also do not supplant: existing 
prohibitions applicable to members of certain State boards, commissions, and authorities; the 
prohibitions on self-dealing applicable to all public officers found at SDCL 3-16-8; or the 
prohibitions on State employees receiving dual compensation for serving on a State board, 
commission, or authority found in SDCL 3-8-4.1. 
 
The most recent updates to the disclosure laws can be found in HB 1170 and SB 65 from the 
2017 Legislative Session.  SB 65 added the South Dakota Board of Technical Education to the 
list of authorities, boards, or commissions covered by the law.  HB 1170 revised the disclosure 
laws found in HB 1214 from the 2016 Legislative Session.  More specifically, HB 1170 
distinguishes between “deriving a direct benefit from” a covered contract and “having an interest 
in” a covered contract.  Under the new law, a current or former Board Member may only derive a 
direct benefit from a covered contract if the contract is disclosed and a waiver1 is authorized by 
the Board.  The Board Member must disclose covered contracts in which they “have an interest” 
only during the Member’s term on the Board.  Former Board Members are not subject to the 
disclosure requirements for contracts in which they have an interest but from which they do not 
derive a direct benefit.   
 
These instructions include best practices and are not intended to be used in isolation:  instead, 
they should be used in conjunction with a review of the disclosure laws, the State Board 
Decision Matrix, and the annual disclosure form.  Attorneys for the State agency, board, 
authority or commission may answer general questions about the applicability of the disclosure 
laws or about the other laws that address self-dealing or dual compensation.  However, because 
these attorneys represent the agency or board, their client is the agency, board, authority or 
commission: board members in their individual capacity are not their clients, nor do they owe a 
                                                           
1
 The term “waiver” is used to describe the process by which a board reviews and approves of or authorizes a board 

member’s covered contract. 



2 

 

legal obligation to board members in their individual capacity.  These attorneys cannot provide 
private legal advice regarding the best interests of an individual board member or the board 
member’s employer or business, and cannot guarantee the confidentiality of communications 
with individual board members.  As a result, members are encouraged to contact a private 
attorney in regard to their individual interests and contracts.  Private attorneys may, in turn, 
contact the attorneys for the state board, authority or commission with questions. 
 
Note that there may be more specific provisions relating to a board, commission or authority than 
what is set forth in the disclosure laws.  In the event the disclosure laws described in these 
instructions and the laws specific to the board, commission, or authority are different, the more 
restrictive law will be applied. 
 
 
 



3 

 

SUMMARY OF THE DISCLOSURE LAWS 
 
 Who do the disclosure laws apply to? 
 
The disclosure laws apply to individuals who, on or after July 1, 2017, are members of the 
following State boards, commissions and authorities:   
 

(1)    South Dakota Building Authority;  
            (2)    Board of Economic Development; 
            (3)    South Dakota Housing Development Authority; 
            (4)    South Dakota Health and Education Facilities Authority; 
            (5)    Science and Technology Authority Board of Directors; 
            (6)    South Dakota Ellsworth Development Authority; 
            (7)    South Dakota Commission on Gaming; 
            (8)    South Dakota Lottery Commission; 
            (9)    State Brand Board; 
            (10)    Game, Fish and Parks Commission; 
            (11)    Banking Commission; 
            (12)    Board of Trustees of the South Dakota Retirement System; 
            (13)    Aeronautics Commission; 
            (14)    South Dakota State Railroad Board; 
            (15)    Transportation Commission; 
            (16)    South Dakota Board of Education; 
            (17)    Board of Regents; 
            (18)    Board of Pardons and Paroles; 
            (19)    Board of Minerals and Environment; 
            (20)    Board of Water and Natural Resources; 
            (21)    South Dakota Railroad Authority;  
            (22)    Board of Water Management; and 

(23) South Dakota Board of Technical Education. 
 
What types of contracts are prohibited under the law? 
 

A current Board Member is prohibited from having an interest in or deriving a direct benefit 
from any contract: 
 

1) with the state agency to which the Board is attached for reporting or oversight 
purposes if the contract requires the expenditure of government funds;   

2) with the state if the contract requires approval of the Board, and the expenditure of 
government funds; or  

3) with a political subdivision of the state if the political subdivision approves the 
contract and2  

                                                           
2 Contracts with political subdivisions do not require the expenditure of government funds to be subject to the 
disclosure laws. 



4 

 

a.  is under the regulatory oversight of the Board; or 
b.  is under the regulatory oversight of the agency to which the Board is attached. 

 
Current and former Board Members are prohibited from deriving a direct benefit from any such 
contract.  Additionally, a former board member may not contract with the board for a year after 
his or her term ends unless the Board determines that the terms of the contract are fair, 
reasonable, and in the best interests of the public. 

 
 What does it mean to “derive a direct benefit” from a contract? 
 
A current or former Board Member derives a direct benefit from a covered contract if the 
Member, the Member’s spouse, or a person with whom the Member lives or commingles assets:    
 

1) Is a party to or intended beneficiary of the covered contract;  
2) Has more than a five percent ownership interest in an entity that is a party to the 

covered contract; 
3) Acquires property under the covered contract; or 
4) Will receive from a party to the covered contract compensation, commission, 

promotion or other monetary benefit that is directly attributable to the covered 
contract.  

 
What does it mean to have “an interest” in a contract? 

 
A current Board Member has an interest in a covered contract if the Member, the Member’s 
spouse, or a person with whom the Member lives or commingles assets:  
 

1) Is employed by a party to the covered contract (but does not receive any 
compensation, commission, promotion or other monetary benefit directly attributable 
to the covered contract); OR 

2) Receives more than nominal compensation or reimbursement for actual expenses for 
serving on the board of directors of an entity that derives income or commission 
directly from the covered contract or that acquires property under the covered 
contract.     

 
What is not covered under the terms “derive a benefit” or “have an interest”?   

 
A current or former Board Member does not need to disclose or request a waiver for a contract 
if:  
 

1) The derived benefit or interest is based solely on the value associated with the 
Member’s publicly-traded investments or holdings, or the investments or holdings of 
any other person with whom the member lives or commingles assets; or   

2) The Member’s benefit or interest is only from an act of the Board that has general 
application, such as a decision by the Board to increase or decrease a fee that many 
South Dakotans pay; or 



5 

 

3) The Member is a state employee and authorized to enter into the contract pursuant to 
SDCL 5-18A-17 through 5-18A-17.6; or 

4) The covered contract is for the sale of goods, or for maintenance or repair services, in 
the regular course of business at or below a price offered to all customers;  

5) The contract is subject to a public bidding process; or  
6) The contract is for the deposit of public funds in a financial institution as otherwise 

authorized by law.  
 
How can a Board Member obtain a waiver for a direct benefit? 

 
A current or former Board Member who derives a direct benefit from a covered contract that is 
entered into or renewed on or after July 1, 2017, will need to obtain a waiver for those contracts.  
A waiver may be granted to authorize a direct benefit from a covered contract if the following 
conditions are met: 
 

1. The Board Member provides a full disclosure to the Board, including:  
a. The parties to the covered contract;  
b. The Member’s role in the contract; 
c. The purpose and objective of the contract;  
d. The consideration or benefit conferred or agreed to be conferred upon each 

party;  
e. The duration of the contract;  

 
2. The Board finds that the terms of the covered contract are fair, reasonable, and not 

contrary to the public interest; and  
 

3. The authorization by the Board is a public record included in the official minutes of 
the Board that are filed with the auditor-general and attorney general.  

 
Note: For record keeping purposes, it is advisable that Board Members use the attached forms to 
provide written disclosure of a direct benefit and that Boards use the attached forms for 
authorization for the Member to derive the direct benefit.  The forms should be included with the 
minutes.   
 
All efforts should be made to disclose and seek authorization before the Board Member derives a 
direct benefit from the covered contract.  However, a Board Member may disclose and seek 
authorization for a contract up to forty-five days after the contract has been executed.  The Board 
Member may not participate in the discussion or vote regarding the Board’s approval of the 
waiver.   
 
Once a waiver is obtained, further disclosure or authorization is not required unless the contract 
extends into consecutive fiscal years.  If so, the contract must be disclosed at least annually but 
no additional waiver is required.  A form for annual disclosure is available on the Attorney 
General’s website: http://atg.sd.gov/legal/opengovernment/authorityboardcommission.aspx.   
 



6 

 

Under what circumstances can a current board member have an interest in a 
contract? 

 
A current Board Member may have “an interest in” a covered contract if the Board Member 
discloses, on at least an annual basis (no later than the first meeting after July 1 of each year),  
the contract giving rise to the interest and the Board Member’s role in that contract.3  The 
covered contract must not violate any other provision of law and the disclosure must be included 
in the minutes of the Board that are publicly available and are filed with the auditor-general and 
attorney general.  The Member shall make an annual disclosure of covered contracts in which the 
Member has an interest using a form which is available on the website for the Office of Attorney 
General at:  http://atg.sd.gov/legal/opengovernment/authorityboardcommission.aspx.  The 
Member must also disclose, on at least an annual basis, any ownership interest of five percent or 
greater in any entity that receives grant money from the state, either directly or by pass-through 
grant, or that contracts with the state or with any political subdivision for services (“ownership 
disclosures”).   
  
 What are some examples of how the law would be applied? 

 
1. A current commissioner of Game, Fish and Parks enters into a contract with Game Fish 

and Parks for the landscape design at a new state park facility.  This is a contract with the 
state agency to which the Game, Fish and Parks Commission is attached.  Accordingly, 
the contract is allowable only if properly disclosed and waiver is sought and secured from 
the Commission.    

  
2. A current member of the State Board of Education lives with and commingles assets with 

a person who owns a commercial property development firm.  The local school district 
enters into a purchase agreement to buy certain property from the firm.  This is a 
prohibited contract with a political subdivision of the State (the school district) that is 
under the regulatory authority of the Board of Education.  The contract is allowable only 
if properly disclosed and waiver is sought and secured from the Board.  

 
3. A current Aeronautics Commission member owns a construction company.  The 

construction company contracts with the State for the construction of air navigation 
facilities.  Such facilities must be approved by the Aeronautics Commission pursuant to 
statute.  This is a prohibited contract because it is with the State and requires approval of 
the Aeronautics Commission.  The contract is allowable only if properly disclosed and 
waiver is sought and secured from the Commission. 
 

4. A member of the Board of Economic Development sits on the board of a non-profit 
organization which provides job training.  The organization applies for and receives a 
loan from the Board of Economic Development to build a new job training center.  The 
board member receives a $10,000 per year stipend for serving on the organization’s 

                                                           
3 As noted above, former Board Members are not required to disclose contracts in which they have an interest but 
from which they do not derive a direct benefit.   



7 

 

board.  This is a prohibited contract because the member receives more than nominal 
compensation for service on the non-profit board and, as a result, has an interest in a 
covered contract.  The contract is only allowable if the person properly discloses to the 
Board of Economic Development the contract and the member’s relationship to the non-
profit organization.  No waiver is necessary.   



8 

 

GUIDANCE FOR BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 How can I obtain a waiver? 

 
If a waiver is necessary, a written request for a waiver should be submitted to the Board prior to 
a meeting.  This should be done as soon as the Member is aware that he or she has or will derive 
a direct benefit from a covered contract.  If in doubt whether a direct benefit exists, disclose and 
request a waiver.    
 
Briefly describe the parties to the covered contract.  Briefly describe your role in the contract and 
how any relationship you have may give rise to the necessity for a waiver, including how you, 
your spouse or anyone with whom you live or commingle assets might derive a direct benefit 
from the contract.  Examples of persons other than your spouse might include a girlfriend, 
boyfriend, roommate, or an adult child.   
 
Briefly describe the purpose and objective of the covered contract.  What goods or services are 
provided?  What project is the contract for?   
 
Briefly describe the consideration or benefit conferred or agreed to be conferred upon each party 
to the covered contract.  How much money is being paid directly?  Are there any bonuses or 
commissions involved?  
 
Briefly describe the duration of the covered contract.  What is the anticipated timeline for 
completion?   
 
THE REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT THAT WILL BE OPEN TO 
PUBLIC INSPECTION. 
 
CAUTION:  The failure of a Board to act on a request for a waiver does not mean the waiver 
was or will be allowed.  The Board Member requesting waiver is responsible to follow up on 
waiver requests as necessary.  
 
CAUTION:  No “blanket” waivers may be granted under the disclosure laws.  For example, a 
Board Member could not seek approval to derive a direct benefit from “any land lease 
transaction with the Department of Game, Fish and Parks.”  Because the Board must review the 
terms of the contract to determine that the terms are fair, reasonable and not contrary to the 
public interest, each contract must be given separate approval.  Some Boards may need to 
schedule special meetings depending on how often the Board meets or the frequency of waiver 
requests. 
 

How do I disclose a contract? 
 

Disclosures not requiring  authorization or waiver by the Board, including disclosures of covered 
contracts in which the Member has an interest, disclosures of direct benefits which were 
previously authorized by the Board, and ownership disclosures, should be done on at least an 



9 

 

annual basis.  If in doubt whether an interest exists, disclose.  Disclosures should be completed 
using the annual disclosure form available on the website for the Office of Attorney General at:  
http://atg.sd.gov/legal/opengovernment/authorityboardcommission.aspx and sent to the Auditor-
General and Attorney General after review by the Board.     
 
 What are the penalties for failing to comply with the law? 
 
Any Board Member who knowingly violates the provisions of the disclosure laws shall be 
removed from the Board and is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.  The covered contract is 
voidable by the Board and any benefit that the Board Member received from the contract is 
subject to disgorgement.  In the event that the Board Member is also guilty of theft under SDCL 
Chapter 22-30A, including theft by direct criminal conflict of interest,4 his or her criminal 
penalty is enhanced.  However, a Board Member who has submitted a good faith request for a 
waiver related to a direct benefit cannot be convicted of violation of the disclosure laws in 
connection with the covered contract.   
 

 

                                                           
4 Created by Chapter 98, 2017 Session Laws, effective July 1, 2017. 



10 

 

GUIDANCE FOR THE BOARD 
 

What are best practices for acting on a request for waiver from a board member? 
 
A procedure for receiving and distributing waiver requests prior to a meeting should be adopted.   
Boards are also advised to have a standing item at the beginning of their meeting agendas during 
which the Board will address disclosures and waiver requests.  The request for a waiver should 
be reviewed by the other Board Members prior to the Board meeting and, to the extent necessary, 
the other Board Members should be prepared to ask the requesting Board Member questions 
during the meeting in order to determine whether the contract is eligible for waiver.   
 
In the interest of fairness to Board Members requesting waivers and persons with whom they 
may be dealing, all waiver requests should be decided at the meeting in which the request is 
brought forth.  Boards are advised to conduct special meetings if necessary for timely action on a 
waiver request.  If you deem the request form incomplete, you should ask for additional 
information from the requesting Board Member during the meeting, rather than delaying action 
on the request.   
 
Unless readily apparent from the disclosure or written request, you should ask questions to 
determine the requesting party’s relationship to the contract; the requesting party’s relationship 
to the outside contracting party; whether the contract terms are fair, reasonable and not contrary 
to the public interest; and any other questions you believe will help establish the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the contract and the request for waiver. 
 
The requesting Board Member should be prepared to answer any questions the Board may have.  
Then, the requesting Board Member should leave the meeting while the other Board members 
discuss the request and determine whether authorization for a waiver is appropriate.  The request 
and the Board’s determination shall be included in the minutes of the meeting.  The Board 
should avoid using an incomplete request form as a reason to extend the time for review if the 
needed information is readily provided by the Board Member.  
   
If the authorization is granted, the decision must be included in the meeting minutes.  In 
addition, following the meeting, a written authorization should be prepared using the 
appropriate State Board Disclosure Laws Waiver Authorization form, signed by the chair 
of the Board or other authorized Board Member, and filed with the Auditor General and 
Attorney General. 
 
Minutes may be filed with the attorney general 
by email attachment in PDF format and sent 
to ATGMinutes@state.sd or sent by mail to: 

 
Office of Attorney General 
Attn: Board Minutes 
1302 E. Highway 14, #1                
Pierre, SD 57501 

Minutes may be filed with the auditor-general 
by email attachment in PDF format to:  
DLAMinutes@state.sd.us or sent by mail to: 

Department of Legislative Audit 
427 S Chapelle 
c/o 500 E Capitol 

            Pierre, SD 57501 



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
 
(insert name of board/commission/authority) 
 

REQUEST FOR STATE BOARD WAIVER 
PURSUANT TO SDCL CHAPTER 3-23 

 
THIS IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 

 
Date:_____________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Board Member or Former Board Member:________________________________ 

Name of Board, Authority or Commission:_______________________________________ 

Brief explanation of contract for which a waiver is requested: 
 

a) Parties to the contract 
 
 
 
 

b) Board Member’s role in the contract 
 
 
 
 

c) Purpose and objective of the contract 
 
 
 
 

d) Consideration or benefit conferred or agreed to be conferred upon each party 
 
 
 
 

e) Duration of the contract 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Requesting Party:___________________________________ Date______________  



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
 
(insert name of board/commission/authority) 
 

STATE BOARD DISCLOSURE LAWS  
WAIVER AUTHORIZATION 

PURSUANT TO SDCL 3-23 (current member) 
 

THIS IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 
A written request for waiver dated ___________________, was received from  
 
___________________________.  The request was acted upon by the members of  
 
__________________ (insert name of board/commission/authority) during a meeting held on  
 
_________________.    
 
(check one)  
 
_____    The request for waiver was denied for the following reasons:   
 
 
 
 
 
_____    The request for waiver was authorized for the following reasons:  
 
 
 
 
 
_____    The request for waiver was authorized subject to the following conditions: 
 
  
 
 
Signature of Chairperson or Authorized Member    Date 
 
Printed Name:  _________________________________  
 
 
 
Date sent to Auditor-General ________________ Date sent to Attorney General_______________



1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
 
(insert name of board/commission/authority) 
 

STATE BOARD DISCLOSURE LAWS  
WAIVER AUTHORIZATION 

PURSUANT TO SDCL 3-23 (former member) 
 

THIS IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 
A written request for waiver dated ___________________, was received from  
 
___________________________.  The request was acted upon by the members of  
 
__________________ (insert name of board/commission/authority) during a meeting held on  
 
_________________.    
 
(check one)  
 
_____    The request for waiver was denied for the following reasons:   
 
 
 
 
 
_____    The request for waiver was authorized for the following reasons: 
 
 
 
 
 
_____    The request for waiver was authorized subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
 
Signature of Chairperson or Authorized Member    Date 
 
Printed Name:  _________________________________  
 
 
 
Date sent to Auditor-General _________________ Date sent to Attorney General______________ 



1 

 

State Board Disclosure Laws  
WAIVER & DISCLOSURE DECISION MATRIX 

SDCL 3-23-1 et seq. 
Effective July 1, 2017 

 
DO I NEED TO DISCLOSE OR REQUEST A WAIVER? 

 
This matrix will assist a current or former state board member in determining whether it is 
necessary to disclose an interest in a contract or to seek a waiver in order to receive a benefit 
from a contract with a State agency or with a political subdivision of the State.  This matrix is not 
designed to be used in isolation.  Instead, it should be used in conjunction with the State Board 
Disclosure Law Instructions and Forms, the annual disclosure form prepared by the Attorney 
General’s Office,1 a review of the Disclosure Laws, and discussions with legal counsel.  This 
matrix is intended as a general guide only and is not by itself determinative of whether disclosure 
is necessary.  The statutes covered by this matrix can be found in HB 1170 and SB 65 from the 
2017 legislative session.  These laws go into effect on July 1, 2017.  
 
The questions in this matrix may not address your specific situation.  In addition, to answer these 
questions, you should keep in mind that an agreement does not always need to be in writing to be 
considered a contract.  Also, keep in mind that a board member him or herself need not be a 
party to the contract for the contract to be covered under the disclosure laws.  If you have any 
doubt as to the answer to any of the questions below, you are encouraged to choose “YES” for 
the purposes of completing the matrix and deciding whether you need to disclose a contractual 
relationship or request a waiver. 
 

1. Within the last year, was I a member of one of the boards, commissions, or authorities 
listed below?   
 
(1)    South Dakota Building Authority;  

            (2)    Board of Economic Development; 
            (3)    South Dakota Housing Development Authority; 
            (4)    South Dakota Health and Education Facilities Authority; 
            (5)    Science and Technology Authority Board of Directors; 
            (6)    South Dakota Ellsworth Development Authority; 
            (7)    South Dakota Commission on Gaming; 
            (8)    South Dakota Lottery Commission; 
            (9)    State Brand Board; 
            (10)    Game, Fish and Parks Commission; 
            (11)    Banking Commission; 
            (12)    Board of Trustees of the South Dakota Retirement System; 
            (13)    Aeronautics Commission; 
            (14)    South Dakota State Railroad Board; 
                                                           
1 This form can be on the Attorney General’s website at: 
http://atg.sd.gov/legal/opengovernment/authorityboardcommission.aspx. 



2 

 

            (15)    Transportation Commission; 
            (16)    South Dakota Board of Education; 
            (17)    Board of Regents; 
            (18)    Board of Pardons and Paroles; 
            (19)    Board of Minerals and Environment; 
            (20)    Board of Water and Natural Resources; 
            (21)    South Dakota Railroad Authority;  
            (22)    Board of Water Management; or  

(23)    South Dakota Board of Technical Education. 
 
 If YES, proceed to next question. 
 If NO, no disclosure or request for waiver is needed. 2      
 

2. Do I have an ownership interest of five percent or greater in any entity that receives grant 
money from the state, either directly or by a pass-through grant, or that contracts with the 
state or any political subdivision for services? 
 
If YES, DISCLOSURE IS NECESSARY FOR CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS 
ONLY.  HOWEVER, NO REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED.  Proceed to 
question 3 to determine if you have additional obligations under the law. 
If NO, proceed to the next question. 

  
3. Does the contract involve the expenditure of government funds?  

 
If YES, proceed to next question. 
If NO, no disclosure or request for waiver is needed unless:  

(a) the contract is with a political subdivision of the state; and 
(b) the political subdivision approves of the contract and is under the regulatory 
oversight of the authority, board, commission, or the agency to which the 
authority, board, or commission is attached for reporting or oversight purposes.   
 
If (a) and (b) are satisfied proceed to the next question. 

 
4. Is the contract with: 

a. The state agency to which the authority, board, or commission is attached for 
reporting or oversight purposes; OR 

b. With the State and requires approval of the authority, board, or commission; OR 

                                                           
2 This matrix does not address conflicts for a board member, fiscal agent, officer, or executive of a local service 
agency, school district, cooperative education service unit, or education service agency, that receives money from or 
through the state.  However, such persons are also subject to the provisions of HB 1170.    

 



3 

 

c. With a political subdivision which is under the regulatory oversight of the 
authority, board, or commission or under the regulatory oversight of the agency to 
which the authority, board or commission is attached?  

 
If YES, proceed to next question. 
If NO to all, no disclosure or request for waiver is needed. 

 
5. Does the contract fit one of the following exceptions:  

a. The only financial benefit to the board member is the value associated with the 
member’s publicly-traded investments or holdings or the value associated with the 
investments or holdings of a person with whom the board member lives or 
commingles assets; OR  

b. The member’s only interest arises from an act of the Board that has general 
application; OR 

c. The member is a state employee and authorized to enter into the contract pursuant 
to SDCL 5-18A-17 through 5-18A-17.6; OR 

d. The contract is for the sale of goods, or for maintenance or repair services, in the 
regular course of business at or below a price offered to all customers; OR 

e. The contract is subject to a public bidding process; OR 
f. The contract is for the deposit of public funds in a financial institution as 

otherwise authorized by law?  
 
  If YES to any, no disclosure or request for waiver is necessary.  
  If NO to all, proceed to next question.  
 

6. Am I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or commingle assets a party to or 
intended beneficiary of the contract?  
 
If YES, DISCLOSURE AND REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED. 
If NO, proceed to next question. 
 

7. Do I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or commingle assets have more 
than a five percent ownership interest in a party to the contract? 

 
If YES, DISCLOSURE AND REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED. 
If NO, proceed to next question. 

 
8. Will or do I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or commingle assets 

acquire property under the contract? 
 

If YES, DISCLOSURE AND REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED. 
If NO, proceed to next question. 



4 

 

9. Will or do I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or comingle assets receive 
from a contracting party compensation, commission, promotion, or other monetary 
benefit directly attributable to the contract?   
 

 If YES, DISCLOSURE AND REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED. 
If NO, proceed to next question.  

10. Am I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or commingle assets employed 
by a party to the contract?  

 
If YES, DISCLOSURE IS NECESSARY FOR CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS 
ONLY.  HOWEVER, NO REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED.  
If NO, proceed to the next question. 

11.  Am I, my spouse, or any other person with whom I live or commingle assets serving as a 
board member of an entity that is a party to the contract and receiving more than nominal 
compensation for service on such board?  

If YES, DISCLOSURE IS NECESSARY FOR CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS 
ONLY.  HOWEVER, NO REQUEST FOR WAIVER IS NEEDED. 
If NO, no disclosure or request for waiver is necessary. 
  
 
 

 
  



ANNUAL DISCLOSURE FOR AUTHORITY/BOARD/COMMISSION MEMBER 
PURSUANT TO SDCL CHAPTER 3-23  

 
THIS IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 

 
Name of Member: ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Board, Authority or Commission: ________________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Member shall disclose below any contract in which the Member has an interest or from which the Member derives a direct benefit 
if the contract is: 
  

1) With the state agency to which the Member’s board, authority or commission is attached for reporting or oversight 
purposes and which contract requires the expenditure of government funds; 

2) With the state and which contract requires the approval of the Member’s board, authority or commission and the 
expenditure of government funds; or  

3) With a political subdivision of the state if the political subdivision approves the contract and: 
a. Is under the regulatory oversight of the authority, board, or commission, or  
b. Is under the regulatory oversight of the agency to which the Member’s board, authority or commission is 

attached.    
 

The Member shall disclose the contract even though no additional authorization is needed from the Member’s board, authority or 
commission to have an interest or derive a benefit from the contract.   
 
The Member shall also identify every entity in which the Member possesses an ownership interest of five percent or greater if:  
 

1) The entity receives grant money from the State, either directly or by a pass-through grant or  
2) The entity contracts with the State or any political subdivision for services.   

 

 



1. Contracts in which you have an interest pursuant to SDCL Chapter 3-23 and which do not violate any other provision 
of law - Provide the following for each contract in which you have, or will have, an interest.   For further information see SDCL 3-23-
2.1 and 3-23-3.1. 
  
Description of the contract Parties Description of your 

interest/role in the contract 
 

Date contract was previously  
disclosed, if applicable 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 Attach additional pages, if necessary. 
 
2.  Contracts in which you have a direct benefit pursuant to SDCL Chapter 3-23 - Provide the following for each contract 
from which you derive, or will derive, a direct benefit.   For more information see SDCL 3-23-2, 3-23-2.2 and 3-23-3.1.   
 
Description of the contract Parties  

 
Description of the direct 
benefit 

Date contract was authorized 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Attach additional pages, if necessary. 



 
3. Entities in which you possess an ownership interest of five percent or more that receive grant money from the State, 
either directly or by a pass-through grant, or that contract with the State or any political subdivision for services – Provide the 
following for each such entity.  See SDCL 3-23-3.1. 
 

 
Description of the contract or grant Party in which you possess the interest 

 
State agency or subdivision 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Attach additional pages, if necessary. 
 
 

The member shall complete a separate authorization request for any contract identified above that requires authorization from the 
Member’s board, authority or commission in order for the Member to legally derive a direct benefit.   
  
 
 
   
Signature of Member:  ________________________________________________________________  Date: __________________ 



J 
 

 



 
 
 

                                      Board of Economic Development 
                                        January 11, 2023 
 
 
 

                           BILLS REQUIRING APPROVAL FOR PAYMENT 
 
Department of Legislative Audit     $19,140.30 
 
Heartland Energy       $  7,501.90 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 







INVOICE

SD Governor's Office of Economic Development Date: 12/29/22
Attn: Travis Dovre Invoice Number: 3759
711 E Wells Avenue Payment Due: 01/18/23
Pierre, SD  57501

Description Amount

Howard Building expenses
Larsen Overhead Door Service     ($10,002.53 X 75%) $7,501.90

TO REMIT PAYMENT BY MAIL:
First Bank & Trust
Attn: Marc - Heartland Revenue Account
P.O. Box 5057
Brookings, SD  57006-5057

432 SE 12th Street | PO Box 248
Madison, SD 57042

(605) 256-6536 | heartlandenergy.com




